
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2023/FINANCE, INSURANCE, PERSONNEL-3rd Thursday/2023-04-20 Finance 
Meeting/2023-04-20FinanceAgenda.docx 
4/18/2023 9:34 AM 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone: (920) 478-3025 
    Fax: (920) 478-2021 

www.waterloowi.us 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE OF A COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 

CITY OF WATERLOO COMMON COUNCIL 
  
 

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public meeting 
will be held to consider the following: 
 

COMMITTEE:  FINANCE, INSURANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
DATE:   April 20, 2023 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 
LOCATION:  Municipal Building Council Chamber, 136 N. Monroe Street  
   via remote conference or in-person for participants and public 

 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2) APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: March 16, 2023, March 21, 2023 and April 13, 2023 

 
3) PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4) OLD BUSINESS 

 
5) NEW BUSINESS 

a) March  2023 Financial Statements: Payroll $78,518.07  , General Disbursements $346,717.18 and Clerk/Treasurer’s 
Reports [see on municipal website] 

b) 2022 Audit Presentation – Baker Tilley 
c) Resolution 2023-16 Awarding a Contract for Waterloo Road 
d) Shredding Bids for City Hall and Police Department.   
e) Town of Waterloo EMS Contract 
f) Review Ordinance §85-4 Probationary Period 

 
 

6) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

7) ADJOURNMENT 

 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/ Deputy Treasurer 
        
Committee Members:  Thomas, Weihert and Kuhl       Posted, Emailed & Distributed: 04/18/2023 

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may attend the above meeting(s) to gather information. No action 
will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s office at the above location.  

https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2023/FINANCE, INSURANCE, PERSONNEL-3rd Thursday/2023-03-16FinanceMeeting/2023-03-
16FinanceMinutes.docx 
4/13/2023 11:29 AM 

CITY OF WATERLOO FINANCE, INSURANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE: MEETING MINUTES  
March 16, 2023 

[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record] 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL. Thomas called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Members in person: Thomas 

Remote: Kuhl.  Absent: Weihert Other attending in person or remote: Mayor Quimby; Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Nelson; 
City Clerk Ritter; DPW Yerges, Police Chief Sorenson, Parks Coordinator Haberkorn, R. Griffin, S. Cummings, A. 
Kuhl, Fire Chief Benisch, Asst. Fire Chief C. Butzine, 1st Lt J. Butzine, A. Biermeier, E. Butztine and Utilities 
Superintendent Sorenson.     
 

2. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: Motion to approve Meeting Minutes February 16, 2023. [Thomas/Kuhl] VOICE 
VOTE: Motion carried.  March 9th open and closed tabled.   
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT: none 
 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS - none  

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

a. January  2023 Financial Statements: Clerk/Treasurer’s Reports [see on municipal website]  Motion [Kuhl/Thomas] 
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.  

b. February 2023 Financial Statements: Payroll $75,525.44  , General Disbursements $1,649,556.16 and : 
Clerk/Treasurer’s Reports [see on municipal website]  Motion [Kuhl/Thomas] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   

c. Resolution 2023-11 Park Commission accepting Grant from The Greater Watertown Community Health Foundation 
for TRP Play Structure Motion to recommend to Council [Kuhl/Thomas] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 

d. Library Parking Lot Bid Discussion Motion City to contribute $75,000 remainder of $160,085 bid paid by library.  
Motion [Thomas/Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   

e. Fire Dept Air Compressor  No action taken 
f. Fire Dept Quote for Tender 95 No action taken 
g. City Hall and Police Station Duct Cleaning Quotes.Motion to approve Ducts on Call for $13,560.to be paid from 

Building Maintenance for City Hall and Police and Contingency if needed.  [Kuhl/Thomas] Motion carried.   
h. Façade Grant approval procedures. Motion to send to CDA to determine approval process for paying.  [Kuhl/Thomas] 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.    
i. Luminous Rose Façade-Interior Grant Application. Motion to recommend to Council for approval.  [Kuhl/Thomas] 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 
j. Garbage Rate Increase Discussion.  Updated information regarding W&L billing increase.  Motion to recommend  to 

Council $1 increase in garbage charge to residents on 7/1/2023. [ [Kuhl/Thomas] Motion carried.   
k. Bid for processing Credit/Debit Cards at City Hall for Dog license and Hall rentals.  Also, at the Police Station for 

citations. Motion to recommend Edge one to Council.  [Kuhl/Thomas] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried.   

 
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a. Committee Calendar (for reference) 

 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT. MOTION: [Kuhl/Thomas] To adjourn. VOICE VOTE:  Motion carried. Approximate time 6:54pm 
 

 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements
https://www.waterloowi.us/clerk-treasurer/pages/monthly-financial-statements


 

 

CITY OF WATERLOO SPECIAL FINANCE, INSURANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE: MEETING MINUTES  
March 21, 2023 

[a digital recording of this meeting also serves as the official record] 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL. Thomas called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. Members in person or remote: 

Kuhl, Thomas and Weihert Remote: none.  Absent: none Other attending in person or remote: J.Butzine, Fire Chief 
Benisch City Clerk Ritter; .     
 

2. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Fire Department Ambulance Chassis/Grant. Memo coming from J. Butzine regarding quotes requested.  Motion 
to approve the purchase of a 2022 F-550 Chassis from Kayser.  Purchase not to exceed $73,600. 
[Weihert/Kuhl] VOICE VOTE: Motion carried. 

    
 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT. MOTION: [Weihert/Kuhl] To adjourn. VOICE VOTE:  Motion carried. Approximate time 5:50 pm 

 
 
Jeanne Ritter 
Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 



City of Waterloo

Financial highlights

April 20, 2023

Client service team

Justin Hoagland, Senior Manager, CPA

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP



City of Waterloo
General fund results

Summarized income statement
Actual Final budget Variance

Revenues and other financing sources 2,137,048$            2,075,872$            61,176$                  

Expenditures and other financing uses 2,006,765              2,132,101              125,336                  

   Net change in fund balance 130,283$               (56,229)$                186,512$                

Fund balance category definitions
Nonspendable - amounts cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because

          legal or contractual requirements require them to be maintained in tact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by an external source.
Committed - amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed through formal
          action of the governing body.

Assigned - spendable amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are not

          considered restricted or committed.

Unassigned - residual amounts that have not been classified within other categories above.

$46,758 

$-

$-

$362,055 

$998,001 

$1,406,814 

$50,396 

$-

$-

$270,510 

$955,625 

$1,276,531 

 $-  $400,000  $800,000  $1,200,000  $1,600,000

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

Total

General fund - fund balance by category2021 2022

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



City of Waterloo
General fund - fund balance trends

Fund balance policy:
   The policy is to maintain a working capital fund of 25% - 33% of the current year general fund final

   budgeted expenditures. The balance at year-end was $998,001 or 46.8%. The graph below includes both 

   unassigned and assigned fund balance, which is why it's showing 63.8% at year-end.

Other reference values
GFOA recommends a minimum of no less than 2 months (16.7%) of general fund expenditures.

Median reference value generated from 2018 - 2021 Baker Tilly municipal client data for population ranges
         less than 10,000.

21.6%

9.8%

57.5%

52.7%

63.8%

37.1%
36.1%

46.0%

38.9%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Unrestricted general fund - fund balance 
as a percentage of expenditures 

General Fund Actual Policy minimum Policy maximum Reference - Median

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



City of Waterloo
General obligation debt

Debt management policy:
          The City does not currently have a debt management policy.
          Legal debt margin capacity (5% of the city's total equalized value).

Actual percentage of debt limit at 12/31/22: 31%

Total debt outstanding by type at 12/31/2022
General obligation Revenue Debt Other Total

City 4,366,831$                 -$                    -$            4,366,831$            

Comparative metrics available online through the Wisconsin Policy Forum.

                 Select "Debt" -- options for custom comparisons or comparisons by county

https://wispolicyforum.org/research/municipal-datatool-examining-and-comparing-wisconsin-cities-and-
villages/

$3,109,959
$2,608,305

$3,968,747 $3,610,570

$4,866,831

$10,749,515 
$11,708,960 

$12,234,985 

$13,333,770 

$15,747,320 

 $‐

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

General obligation debt capacity

Total G.O. debt outstanding G.O. debt limit

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



City of Waterloo
Governmental funds - debt service 

Current and prior year data
2022 2021

Principal 683,739$                    1,118,177$         
Interest 76,030                        89,126                

     Total 759,769$                    1,207,303$         

Non-capital expenditures 4,140,701$                 4,457,792$         

Other reference values
Median reference value generated from 2018 - 2021 Baker Tilly municipal client data for population ranges
          less than 10,000.

17.0%

26.3%

32.5%

27.1%

18.3%

16.7% 16.6%

19.2%

16.6%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Debt service to non-capital expenditures

City of Waterloo Reference - Median

© 2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted.



Waterloo Water & Light Commission

Unrestricted Reserves

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Year end balance 621,759$        731,550$        812,038$        545,015$        1,067,766$     
  Months on hand 1.35 1.50 1.73 1.06 1.82

Debt Coverage

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Actual 2.23 2.51 2.30 2.80 3.15
Required 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

Investment in Capital

5,512,967 
5,842,080  5,636,763 

6,158,716 

7,022,073 

4,699,607  4,862,694  4,800,434  4,920,121 
5,549,905 

 $‐

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses

Equity, 62% Debt, 38%



Waterloo Water & Light Commission
Electric Utility Results

Water Utility Results

Sewer Utility Results

3,857,900  3,759,867  3,704,621 
4,053,003 

4,555,111 

$3,539,329  $3,572,244  $3,515,807  $3,521,494 

$4,069,283 

 $‐

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses

640,325 

830,981  867,634  874,609  880,824 

$437,466 
$481,236 

$399,562 

$533,455 
$476,969 

 $‐

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses

1,014,742 

1,251,232 

1,064,508 
1,231,104 

1,586,138 

$722,812 
$809,214 

$885,065  $865,172 
$1,003,653 

 $‐

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Operating results

Operating revenues Operating expenses



Page 1 of 1  

4/17/2023 5:25 PM 

                                           

                          136 North Monroe Street 
   Waterloo, WI 53594-1198 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
Fax: (920) 478-2021  

            www.waterloowi.us 

 

______________________________________________________________________________              _ 
 

RESOLUTION #2023-16 
 

Awarding a Contract For 2023 Street  Improvements – Waterloo Road Improvements 

   
Whereas, the reconstruction of Waterloo Road are funded in part from the 2023 City of Waterloo Capital Project Fund, 
the Township of Waterloo and LRIP Grants ; 
 
Whereas, the public bids were advertised and opened on April 11, 2023 by Senior Design Engineer Jackie Kohn-Born 
who has forwarded the attached recommendation letter and bid tabulation. 
 
Now Therefore Be It Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin, that it awards a contract 
for the work described above to Kartechner Brothers LLC of Waupun, WI in the amount of $430,950.30 for work 
commencing in the Spring of 2023. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of April 2023. 
 
      City of Waterloo 
 
 
 
      Signed:  _____________________________________ 
        Jenifer Quimby 
        Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter  
City Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

http://www.waterloowi.us/


April 14, 2023 
 
 
Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 
City of Waterloo 
136 North Monroe Street 
Waterloo, WI 53594 
 
 
Re: Waterloo Road Resurfacing 

Construction Contract Award Recommendation 
 
Dear Mayor Quimby: 
 
Please find accompanying this transmittal the Bid Tabulation for the Waterloo Road 
Resurfacing project that was bid on April 11, 2023.  As is evident, Kartechner Brothers, 
LLC from Waupun, Wisconsin submitted the low bid in the amount of $430,950.30. 
Four competitive bids were received all less than the Engineers Estimate of 
$568,095.00. 
 
Based upon our analysis and our understanding of the Contractor’s past work efforts, 
we heretofore recommend that a construction contract be awarded to Kartechner 
Brothers, LLC from Waupun, Wisconsin for Waterloo Road Resurfacing in the amount 
of $430,950.30, with the project schedule to begin in the summer of 2023. 
 
Mayor, should either you or the City Council have any questions or comments regarding 
this transmittal, please contact me at your convenience. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
KUNKEL ENGINEERING GROUP 
 

 
 
Mitchell Leisses 
Office/Project Manager 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc: Chad Yerges, Director of Public Works 

  

107 PARALLEL STREET 
BEAVER DAM, WI 53916 

 
1115 S MAIN STREET 

WEST BEND, WI 53095 
 

920-356-9447 
FAX 920-356-9454 

KUNKELENGINEERING.COM 



Item No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 Pulverize Asphalt Pavement 12,100 SY 0.30$                             3,630.00$                      0.25$                             3,025.00$                      0.70$                             8,470.00$                      2.30$                             27,830.00$                    

2 Mill Asphalt Pavement 300 SY 4.82$                             1,446.00$                      14.00$                           4,200.00$                      20.00$                           6,000.00$                      16.67$                           5,001.00$                      

3 Remove and Replace Culvert Pipe, 60-Inch RCP 50 LF 659.23$                         32,961.50$                    750.00$                         37,500.00$                    700.00$                         35,000.00$                    450.00$                         22,500.00$                    

4 Remove and Replace End Wall, 60-Inch RCP 2 EA 4,770.40$                      9,540.80$                      5,500.00$                      11,000.00$                    6,000.00$                      12,000.00$                    5,000.00$                      10,000.00$                    

5 Unclassified Excavation 1 LS 5,105.00$                      5,105.00$                      49,850.00$                    49,850.00$                    110,000.00$                  110,000.00$                  10,000.00$                    10,000.00$                    

6 Undercutting and Base Course Material 2,500 CY 34.06$                           85,150.00$                    30.00$                           75,000.00$                    5.00$                             12,500.00$                    45.00$                           112,500.00$                  

7 Shoulder Restoration 550 TN 22.25$                           12,237.50$                    35.00$                           19,250.00$                    30.00$                           16,500.00$                    25.00$                           13,750.00$                    

8 Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement, 5-Inch 3,000 TN 65.33$                           195,990.00$                  65.00$                           195,000.00$                  62.00$                           186,000.00$                  69.10$                           207,300.00$                  

9 Steel Plate Beam Guard 110 LF 76.95$                           8,464.50$                      135.00$                         14,850.00$                    75.00$                           8,250.00$                      199.40$                         21,934.00$                    

10 Epoxy Pavement Markings, 4-Inch 22,000 LF 0.72$                             15,840.00$                    0.70$                             15,400.00$                    1.00$                             22,000.00$                    0.70$                             15,400.00$                    

11 Topsoil, Seed and Mulch 7,500 SY 6.50$                             48,750.00$                    1.00$                             7,500.00$                      3.00$                             22,500.00$                    6.45$                             48,375.00$                    

12 Erosion Control 1 LS 3,235.00$                      3,235.00$                      7,500.00$                      7,500.00$                      10,000.00$                    10,000.00$                    2,000.00$                      2,000.00$                      

13 Traffic Control and Access 1 L 3,600.00$                      3,600.00$                      9,500.00$                      9,500.00$                      20,000.00$                    20,000.00$                    5,445.00$                      5,445.00$                      

14 Contract Allowance for Materials and Compaction Testing 1 LS 5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      5,000.00$                      

TOTAL BASE BID 430,950.30$               454,575.00$               474,220.00$               507,035.00$               

 Forest Landscaping & Construction Inc
Lake Mills, WI 

 Kartechner Brothers LLC
Waupun, WI 

 Payne & Dolan Inc
Fitchburg, WI 

BID TABULATION

City of Waterloo - Town of Waterloo - Jefferson County, WI

Waterloo Road Resurfacing

10:00 AM, Tuesday, April 11, 2023

 Wolf Paving
Sun Prairie, WI 



















































The following Code does not display images or complicated formatting. Codes should be viewed online. This 

tool is only meant for editing.  

§ 85-4 General provisions relating to City officials.  

A. Salaries and fringe benefits. The salaries and fringe benefits of City officers and employees shall, from 

time to time, be established by the Council in accordance with state law and the City Personnel Policy.  

B. Powers and duties of City officials. City officials mandated under § 62.09, Wis. Stats., shall have the 

powers and duties prescribed by law and, except for the Mayor, shall perform such other duties as shall 

be required of them by the Council. Other City officials shall perform the duties prescribed by the 

Council.  

C. Multiple offices. The Council may elect to appoint the same person to two or more compatible offices.  

D. Probationary period. All appointed City officials and employees shall be subject to a six-month 

probationary period, beginning with the first day of their employment, during which period they may be 

removed or terminated without cause by a two-thirds majority of the members of the appointing 

authority.  

E. Removal from office. All City officials, except the Police Chief and the Utility Superintendent, may be 

removed from office for cause by a three-fourths majority of the members-elect of the Council.  

 



Employee Handbook

4.5 Probationary Period

Full-time employees are required to serve a twelve (12) month probationary
period commencing on their date of employment.

4.6 Employee Performance Evaluation

After a full time, employee completes their probationary period, they will have
their on-the-job performance evaluated and documented at least annually by
their immediate supervisor.


